

# ABRITES DIAGNOSTICS FOR SUBARU





www.abrites.com

### Important notes

The Abrites software and hardware products are developed, designed and manufactured by Abrites Ltd. During the production process we comply to all safety and quality regulations and standards, aiming at highest production quality. The Abrites hardware and software products are designed to build a coherent ecosystem, which effectively solves a wide range of vehicle-related tasks, such as:

Diagnostic scanning; Key programming; Module replacement, ECU programming; Configuration and coding.

All software and hardware products by Abrites Ltd. are copyrighted. Permission is granted to copy Abrites software files for your own back-up purposes only. Should you wish to copy this manual or parts of it, you are granted permission only in case it is used with Abrites products, has "Abrites Ltd." written on all copies, and is used for actions that comply to respective local law and regulations.

### Warranty

You, as a purchaser of Abrites hardware products, are entitled of a two-year warranty. If the hardware product you have purchased has been properly connected, and used according to its respective instructions, it should function correctly. In case the product does not function as expected, you are able to claim warranty within the stated terms. Abrites Ltd. is entitled to require evidence of the defect or malfunction, upon which the decision to repair or substitute the product shall be made.

There are certain conditions, upon which the warranty cannot be applied. The warranty shall not apply to damages and defects caused by natural disaster, misuse, improper use, unusual use, negligence, failure to observe the instructions for use issued by Abrites, modifications of the device, repair works performed by unauthorized persons. For example, when the damage of the hardware has occurred due to incompatible electricity supply, mechanical or water damage, as well as fire, flood or thunder storm, the warranty does not apply.

Each warranty claim is inspected individually by our team and the decision is based upon thorough case consideration.

Read the full hardware warranty terms on our website.

### **Copyright information**

#### Copyright:

All material herein is Copyrighted ©2005-2021 Abrites, Ltd. Abrites software, hardware, and firmware are also copyrighted Users are given permission to copy any part of this manual provided that the copy is used with Abrites products and the "Copyright © Abrites, Ltd." statement remains on all copies "Abrites" as used in this manual synonymous with "Abrites, Ltd." And all it's affiliates The "Abrites" logo is a registered trademark of Abrites, Ltd.

#### Notices:

The information contained in this document is subject to change without prior notice. Abrites shall not be held liable for technical/editorial errors, or omissions herein.

Warranties for Abrites products and services are set forth in the express written warranty statements accompanying the product. Nothing herein should be construed as constituting any additional warranty.

Abrites assumes no responsibility for any damage resulting from the use, misuse, or negligent use of the hardware or any software application.

### Safety information

The Abrites products are to be used by trained and experienced users in diagnostics and reprogramming of vehicles and equipment. The user is assumed to have a good understanding of vehicle electronic systems, as well as potential hazards while working around vehicles. There are numerous safety situations that cannot be foreseen, thus we recommend that the user read and follow all safety messages in the available manual, on all equipment they use, including vehicle manuals, as well as internal shop documents and operating procedures.

#### Some important points:

Block all wheels of the vehicle when testing. Be cautious when working around electricity.

- Do not ignore the risk of shock from vehicle and building-level voltages.
- Do not smoke, or allow sparks/flame near any part of the vehicle fuel system or batteries.
- Always work in an adequately ventilated area, vehicle exhaust fumes should be directed towards the exit of the shop.

Do not use this product where fuel, fuel vapours, or other combustibles could ignite.

In case any technical difficulties occur, please contact the **Abrites Support Team by email at <u>support@abrites.com</u>.** 

# **Table of contents**

- 1. Introduction
- 2. Getting Started

#### 3. Using the Abrites diagnostics for Subaru

- 3.1 Reading and clearing diagnostic trouble codes
- 3.2 Live data display

#### 4. Key learning

- 4.1 Mechanical key and immobilizer
- 4.2 Mechanical key and BCM

#### 5. Immobilizer Special Function

- 5.1 Current key count
- 5.2 Erase all keys
- 5.3 Add keys Key Registration
- 5.4 Immobilizer Reset
- 5.5 All Keys Lost special function for vehicles with a mechanical key and BCM unit
- 5.5.1 All keys lost using TA41 and PROTAG
- 5.5.2 All keys lost using the ZN066
- 5.6 Engine ECM registration

#### 6. Smart Access System Special Function

- 6.1 Registered Key Count
- 6.2 Erase All Keys
- 6.3 Add keys Key Registration
- 6.4 All Keys Lost Smart System Reset
- 6.5 Engine ECM registration

#### 7. Service Functionalities

- 7.1 DPF regeneration
- 7.2 Injector codes

# List of revisions

Date	Chapter	Description	Revision
01.10.2015	ALL	First version of the docu- ment	1.0
19.02.2016	6	Added new diagnostic and service features	1.1
20.01.2019	6	Key learning for Smart keys and ECM registration	1.2
24.11.2019	6	Key learning for mechanical H type	1.3
27.03.2020	6	Key learning for Mechani- cal H keys improved	1.4
18.09.2023	3, 4, 5, 6, 7	Key Learning procedures general update	1.5

## 1. Introduction

The "Abrites Diagnostics for Subaru" is a personal electronic device and Online server based diagnostic software for Subaru vehicles. With the help of this software you can perform complete diagnostic operations of all vehicles produced by the brand.

For proper operation of your diagnostic software you will need a corresponding interface for connection between your PC and vehicle named "AVDI". The usage of the software requires the device it is installed on (i.e. personal computer) to be connected to the Internet.

AVDI is an interface produced by Abrites Ltd. intended to act as an interface between the PC and the electronic control units within the vehicles.

Your AVDI should be used with ABRITES software produced by Abrites Ltd. ABRITES is a trade mark of Abrites Ltd.

# 2. Getting Started

The Abrites diagnostics for Subaru is installed together with the software applications as a part of the installation provided to the user with the e-mails sent.

In order to operate, the software requires you to have an AVDI interface, a Windows based PC with a minimum of 1024MB RAM, 64GB of free hard drive space and at least Windows 7 64bit Service Pack 1 or later version to operate. For optimal operation, it is always recommended to have the latest software version installed, active AMS, and a stable Internet connection.

With the help of this software you can perform basic and advanced software functionalities such as vehicle scan, read/clear DTCs, monitor live values, Key Learning, etc.

For proper operation of your diagnostic software you will need a corresponding interface for connection between your PC and vehicle named "AVDI". "AVDI" stands for "Abrites Vehicle Diagnostic Interface." It is produced by Abrites Ltd. and intended to act as an interface between the PC and the electronic control units.

Please check the "license viewer" installed on your computer for your unique interface ID number.

The software is in constant development and its functionality is ever growing. The intentions for the Abrites Software are to be used by automotive specialists, but it is simultaneously designed in such a way that is accessible to enthusiasts as well.

AVDI should be used with ABRITES software produced by Abrites Ltd.

ABRITES is a trade mark of Abrites Ltd

You can start the Abrites diagnostics for Subaru from the Quick start icon, installed on your desktop upon installation of the Abrites diagnostic suite. You will be able to start it by clicking on the brand logo.



# 3. Using the Abrites diagnostics for Subaru

Once the Abrites diagnostics for Subaru software is selected the user will see the following screen:

C ABRITES Diag	nostics 32.0 www.abrites.com		2000	×
K Home	Subaru			 ٢
Enter Filter		General Diagnostics		
Scan	Engine Control System			
Immobilizer	Transmission Control System			
Smart Access System	ABS/VDC System			
	Integ. Unit Mode			
	Impact Sensor			
	Cruise Control			
	Power Steering System			
	Tire pressure monitor			
	Airbag System			
	Occupant Detection System			
	Brake Vacuum Pump System			
	Keyless Unit Mode			
	Air Condition System			
ABRITES	CAN System			

In this screen the user will be able to scan all the modules available for the vehicle that is being tested. Once the modules are tested the user will see the installed electronic modules.

#### 3.1 Reading and clearing diagnostic trouble codes

When clicking the scan button the software will begin scanning the vehicle.

Once the scan is complete the electronic control modules in the vehicle will be displayed together with the diagnostic trouble codes, then you can enter each module for detailed information about the unit and the DTCs.

By clicking the "Fault codes" button you will be able to see the present fault codes for the vehicle and the details related to them.

By clicking on "Clear" the fault codes will be deleted:

ABRITES Diagn	ostics 34.5 ww	w.abrites.com	-		×
Home	Subaru	Engine Control System Fault Codes	AMS valid until 09 Feb 202	s <b>0000</b>	0
		List Of Fault Codes			
Read	P0102	Mass or Volume Air Flow Circuit Low		present	1
Clear	P0333	Knock Sensor 2 Circuit Malfunction (High Input)		present	
	P0328	Knock Sensor 1 Circuit Malfunction (High Input)		present	
	P0123	Throttle Position Sensor A High Input		present	
	P0118 Engine Coolant Temp. Sensor Circuit High Input				
	P1492	EGR Solenoid Valve Signal #1 Circuit Malfunction (Low Input)		present	
	P1494	EGR Solenoid Valve Signal #2 Circuit Malfunction (Low Input)		present	
	P1496	EGR Solenoid Valve Signal #3 Circuit Malfunction (Low Input)		present	
	P1498	EGR Solenoid Valve Signal #4 Circuit Malfunction (Low Input)		present	
	P0458	Canister Purge Control Solenoid Valve Circuit Low	present		
	P0113	Intake Air Temperature Sensor Circuit Malfunction (High Input)		present	
	P0037	HO2S Heater Control Circuit Low (Bank1 Sensor2)		present	
A·B·R·I·T·E·S	P0108	Manifold Pressure Sensor Circuit Malfunction (High Input)		present	

#### 3.2 Live data display

Live data from all the available modules can be viewed and analyzed from all the sensors within the available modules for the vehicle.

When you select the electronic unit you want to view the live data for you can select it and press the "Live data button":

t Home	Subaru Engine Contro					
		Unit Info				
Live Data	VIN	4S3GTAA64J3707410				
Fault Codes	Country	United States				
	Manufacturer	SIA - Subaru of Indiana Automotive				
	Vehicle Type	Passenger Vehicle				
	Line Type	Impreza/Crosstrek/WRX/STI				
	Body Style	Baja; 80-84 2nd gen. Leone/DL/GL Brat				
	System	2.0 DOHC				
	Model Identifier					
	Restraint Type	Manual Seat Belt w/ Driver/Passenger Air Bags and Side Air Bags				
	Model Year	2019				
	Plant And Transmission Type	SIA - Full-Time AWD 6MT				
	Production Sequence	Legacy Station Wagon Outback				

The live data values will be displayed:

ABRITES Dia							×
Home	Subaru	Engine Contro	Live Data			.oOD	10
Select None	nai	ne		value	unit		
	V Tr	p Count		3642	Time		
how Selected	<b>√</b> Cα	unt		Common			
	🔽 Tir	me Count		281300	ms		
	🖌 Le	arned Ignitic	Timing	0.0	deg		
	🖌 Ac	cel. Opening	Ingle	12.2	%		
	V CF	C Valve Duty	Ratio	0	%		
	🗸 то	V Position S	nsor R	0.00	v		
	🗸 то	V Position S	nsor L	0.00	v		
	V No	o. of EGR ste	5	0	STEP		
	🖌 AL	T Duty		68	%		
	<mark>∨</mark> w	T Adv. Ang.	mount R	0	deg		
	v	T Adv. Ang.	mount L	0	deg		
	<mark>v</mark> 00	V Duty R		0.0	%		
	✓ 00	CV Duty L		0.0	%		
BRITES	V 00	V Current R		0	mA		

# 4. Key learning

The Abrites software for Subaru covers both mechanical and smart keys. There are 2 general groups:

- Vehicles equipped with a mechanical key and an immobilizer or a BCM unit
- Vehicles equipped with a smart key and a smart system

There are 2 special functions found on the main screen on the software, dedicated to these 2 major platforms which are described in dedicated sections below:

- Immobilizer
- Smart Access System

ABRITES Diagno	stics 34.5 www.abrites.com	-	×
K Home	Subaru	AMS valid until 09 Feb 2025	 ٢
Enter Filter	General Diagnostics		
Scan	Engine Control System		
Immobilizer	Transmission Control System		
Smart Access System	ABS/VDC System		
	Integ. Unit Mode		
	Impact Sensor		
	Cruise Control		
	Power Steering System		
	Tire pressure monitor		
	Airbag System		
	Occupant Detection System		
	Brake Vacuum Pump System		
	Keyless Unit Mode		
	Air Condition System		
A·B·R·I·T·E·S	CAN System		

Following are the general guidelines for executing key learning procedures in Subaru vehicles. Each procedure is described in details in a dedicated section of this user manual

Here are the 3 scenarios for key learning divided by platforms:

#### 4.1 Mechanical key and immobilizer

**Additional Key** programming is executed trough the "Immobilizer" menu of the main screen > "Key Registration" > the procedure is guided and you need to follow the instructions.

**All Keys Lost** requires you to first do an immobilizer reset and then do the Key Registration procedure. Main menu > Immobilizer button > Immobilizer Reset > follow the instructions on the screen. Once the procedure of reset is complete > open the "Key Registration" menu and follow the instructions for key learning.

#### 4.2 Mechanical key and BCM

**Additional Key** programming is executed trough the "Immobilizer" menu of the main screen > "Key Registration" > the procedure is guided and you need to follow the instructions.

**All Keys Lost** requires you to first execute the "All Keys Lost" procedure and then perform key registration procedure either with TA41 or ZN066.

All keys lost procedure is started from "Immobilizer" special function > All Keys Lost and will ask for either a TA41 and a Protag programmer or a ZN066 and will prepare a key emulator.

After the emulator is prepared you will have to perform Key Registration procedure.

#### 4.3 Smart key and smart system

**Additional Key** programming is done trough the Smart Access System special function> Key Registration. Procedure is guided, you need to follow the on-screen instructions.

**All Keys Lost** requires you to perform a Smart Access System reset, once the procedure is complete, you need to do the Key Registration procedure.

# 5. Immobilizer Special Function

Immobilizer Special function is dedicated to vehicles equipped with a mechanical key (H-type key DST-AES transponder) and either an **Immobilizer** or a **BCM** unit, and has the following functionalities:

- Program additional key
- Perform All Keys Lost,
- Perform Immobilizer reset,
- Register ECM (required after key programming),
- Read the number of the access keys registered to the vehicle
- Erase All Keys

The procedures are guided with all necessary steps described with on-screen messages, and is executed via OBDII. For all keys lost procedure you will need additional tools for key emulation and the ProTag key programmer. More details in the dedicated section of this user manual.

The following 2 pictures will show you the screen with available functions as follows:

- 1. Immobilizer Unit
- 2. BCM unit

ABRI	TES Diagnos	tics 34.5 ww	w.abrites.com		-		×
¢ back	Home	Subaru	Immobilizer		AMS valid until 09 Feb 2025	OO	٢
				Key Registration			
				itey registration			
				Engine ECM Registration			
				Registered Key Count			
				Erase All Keys			
				Remote Engine Starter Registration			
				Immobilizer Reset			

ABRITES Diagnostics 34.5 www.abrites.com		-		×
K Home Subaru Immobilizer		AMS valid until 09 Feb 2025	OOO	٢
	Key Registration			
	ney neglocidation			
	Engine ECM Registration			
	Meter/SCU Registration			
	Registered Key Count			
	Erase All Keys			
	Remote Engine Starter Registration			
	Remote Engine Starter Registration			
	All Keys Lost			

#### 5.1 Current key count

A very useful option which tells you how many keys are currently programmed in the vehicle you are working on. Once you select it you will see this window which will tell you the current key count. This is a very important step to be performed before any key learning is done because the vehicle may have reached the maximum number of keys that it accepts - which is 4 keys for vehicles with a mechanical key and immobilizer or a BCM unit, and 8 keys for smart systems. If the number of maximum keys is reached you will have to erase keys first, the procedure is described in a dedicated section.

C ABR	TES Diagnos	tics 32.0 ww	w.abrites.com		- 0	×
back	Home	Subaru	Immobiliz er			٢
				Current key count: 2		
				ОК		

#### 5.2 Erase all keys

Using the "Erase all keys" option is very helpful if the customer has lost one or more of their keys but still has one working key. This function will allow you to remove all registered keys apart from the one that is currently in the ignition. This means that the rest of the keys will not function with this vehicle but you can program one or more additional keys.

If the vehicle has no working key, you will have to first program a key and then use the Erase function, as it **requires a working key in order to be executed**.

Here is how the procedure goes:

ABR	ITES Diagno	stics 32.0 w	ww.abrites.com		-		×
<b>K</b> back	Home	Subaru	Immobiliz er			000	٢
				Do you want to start Erase all keys procedure?			
		Fra	ses all	keys excluding the key that is currently inserted in the ignition switch.			
		Lic	Jes un				
				Turn ignition ON with the key you want to remain active.			
				N			
				Yes No			
ABR	ITES Diagno	stics 32.0 ww	vw.abrites.com		6		×



#### 5.3 Add keys - Key Registration

This procedure is dedicated to vehicles with a mechanical key and an immobilizer unit. This function is used when you have a working key and you would like to add another one to the existing key count. You can start this procedure from the "Immobilizer" button on the main screen and by selecting "Key Registration". The procedure is guided instructions will guide you throughout the key programming process.

It is **very important** that you follow the on-screen messages are there is certain period of time (30 seconds) for executing actions like ignition ON and ignition OFF with the working key and with the new key that is being programmed.



The time frame you have is 30 seconds and the count down timer will notify you as you program the keys.





#### 5.4 Immobilizer Reset

This procedure is dedicated to vehicles with a mechanical key and an immobilizer unit. When all keys are lost you will need to perform an Immobilizer reset first, before you can continue with the key programming. There is a dedicated button in the Immobilizer menu for that.

	RITES Diagnos	stics 34.5 ww	w.abrites.com		-	×
¢ back	Home	Subaru	Immobilizer		AMS valid until 09 Feb 2025	 ٢
				Key Registration		
				Engine ECM Registration		
				Registered Key Count		
				Erase All Keys		
				Remote Engine Starter Registration		
				Immobilizer Reset		

Once you start the Immobilizer Reset procedure it will take about 15 minutes, you will see the progress and once the unit is reset you can continue. It is again a guided procedure and all instructions are provided with on-screen messages, which you need to follow strictly.



Once the immobilizer reset procedure is complete you can proceed to the key learning. You need to select "Key Registration" and proceed with the key learning procedure described in the "Key Registration" section of this manual. The software is guided and you need to strictly follow the instructions. You will be asked to turn ignition ON with the key you wish to program.

#### 5.5 All Keys Lost special function for vehicles with a mechanical key and BCM unit

All Keys Lost special function is used when you have a vehicle with no working keys, that is equipped with a BCM unit and a mechanical key. It gives you 2 options to continue - with TA41 and a Protag programmer, or with a ZN066 adapter. Procedure is started from the Immobilizer special function > All Keys Lost. Once you start it you will see the 2 options as in the screen below.

BRITES Diagnostics 34.5 www.abrites.com		-	0	×
K Home Subaru Immobilizer		AMS valid until 09 Feb 2025	O	٢
	With TA41 and ProTag			
	With ZN066			

#### 5.5.1 All keys lost using TA41 and PROTAG

In this case the TA41 option is selected and we use the ta 41 to emulate a working key for the vehicle with the help of the PROTAG programmer and the Abrites diagnostics for Subaru.

Once the All keys lost procedure is started and the option for TA41 is selected you can connect your PROTAG to the PC and make sure your TA41 is nearby.

The Software will start reading the information from the vehicle and then it will prepare it for key programming.



At some point the software will ask you to put TA41 in the Protag programmer and the software will prepare the key emulator. Then the software will prompt you to turn the ignition ON using the TA41 which has been prepared and the car will be able to start.

You can then go to the procedure for adding a key (Key Registration) if you would like to program more keys to this vehicle.

The specific thing to mention here is that the TA41 remains locked to the vehicle and is very convenient for situations where access to blank Subaru keys is limited and the TA41 usually remains with the customer as a spare or emergency key. It has a key blade position and as a locksmith you can prepare a blade and install it conveniently in the TA41.

NB! For key registration procedure with ZN066 please make sure you turn ignition ON only with a blade key with no transponder and together with the ZN066, otherwise the procedure will fail You can either use a blade only, or if you have a whole key please make sure you remove the transponder at this step.



#### 5.5.2 All keys lost using the ZN066

The procedure with ZN066 does not require a PROTAG programmer. It connects directly to your AVDI's DB15 slot. ZN066 does not stay programmed to the vehicle so you need to have a BLANK Subaru key, a TA41 or any DST AES transponder which you should program to the car. Here is what you need to do:

Make sure you confirm by clicking "yes" after you have connected your ZN066.



Abrites Diagnostics for Subaru will read all the needed information and prepare the ZN066 emulator and the car for key programming.

C ABRITES Diagnostics 32.0 www.abrites.com					$\simeq$	×
<b>K</b> back	Home	Subaru	Immobiliz er			 ٢
				Please wait $40 \ 50 \ 60 \ 30 \ 100 \ 90 \ 100\ \ 100 \ 100 \ 100 $		

Once the ZN066 is prepared you can proceed to key registration procedure.

The software will prompt you to turn the ignition ON using the ZN066 emulator and you will be able to program keys. ZN066 is reusable and can be used to program many vehicles.

NB! For key registration procedure with ZN066 please make sure you turn ignition ON only with a blade key with no transponder and together with the ZN066, otherwise the procedure will fail You can either use a blade only, or if you have a whole key please make sure you remove the transponder at this step.

#### 5.6 Engine ECM registration

This procedure happens automatically after key registration for some vehicles, in other cases you will need to perform it manually after key registration for vehicles with mechanical key. It is required in order to synchronize the information of the new key with the ECM.

#### 5.7 Meter SCU registration

(Coming soon)

#### 5.8 Remote engine starter registration

(Coming soon)

## 6. Smart Access System Special Function

Smart Access System Special function is dedicated to vehicles equipped with a smart key and a Smart Access System, and has the following functionalities:

- Program additional key
- Perform All Keys Lost,
- Perform Smart System reset
- Register ECM (required after key programming),
- Read the number of the access keys registered to the vehicle
- Erase All Keys

The procedures are guided with all necessary steps described with on-screen messages, and is executed via OBDII port of the vehicle.

ABRITES Diagnostics 34.5 www.abrites.com		-	×
K Home Subaru Immobilizer		AMS valid until 09 Feb 2025	 ٩
	Key Registration		
	Steering Lock CM/ID Code Box Registration		
	Engine ECM Registration		
	Registered Key Count		
	Erase All Keys		
	Remote Engine Starter Registration		
	Smart System Reset		

#### 6.1 Registered Key Count

Similar to vehicles with mechanical key, smart systems can hold a certain count of keys and would not accept more then 8 key programmed to the smart system. Whit this functionality you are able to check the number of registered keys to the smart system in the vehicle you are working on.

Once you select the "registered key count" you will see this window which will tell you the current key count. This is a very important step to be performed before any key learning is done because the vehicle may have reached the maximum number of keys that it accepts If the number of maximum keys is reached you will have to erase keys first, the procedure is described in a dedicated section.



#### 6.2 Erase All Keys

Using the "Erase all keys" option is very helpful if the customer has lost one or more of their keys but still has one working key. This function will allow you to remove all registered keys apart from the one that is currently in the ignition. This means that the rest of the keys will not function with this vehicle but you can program one or more additional keys.

If the vehicle has no working key, you will have to first program a key and then use the Erase function, as it **requires a working key in order to be executed**.

Upon starting the procedure you will be asked to confirm by clicking yes, once the procedure is started you will be asked to hold the existing key of the vehicle by the start button. Do not turn ignition or just hold the key by the button and the procedure will erase all other keys from the smart system.



#### 6.3 Add keys - Key Registration

This procedure is dedicated to vehicles with a smart key and a smart access system. This function is used when you have a working key and you would like to add another one to the existing key count. You can start this procedure from the "Smart Access System" button on the main screen and by selecting "Key Reg-istration". The procedure is guided instructions will guide you throughout the key programming process.

It is **very important** that you follow the on-screen messages are there is certain period of time (30 seconds) for executing actions like touching the key to the start button.

Once "Key Registration" is selected you will be prompted to select if you wish to start the procedure and you have to confirm by clocking "yes". Then you will be asked to hold the existing key of the vehicle over the start button, which means you will have to hold the key by the start button of the vehicle, do not turn ignition on, just hold the key. Make sure you follow the instructions on the screen and keep in mind the time limit.



After the registered key is recognized the software will ask you to hold each new key you want to program over the start button. It takes a few seconds and the count will change as in the pictures below - from 1 to 2. At that point you can hold another key or finish the procedure.

ABRITES Diagnostics 34.5 www.abrites.com -						
K Home Subaru Immobilizer	AMS valid until 09 Feb 2025	OO	٢			
Hold and key to be registered over the Ctart Switch or						
Hold each key to be registered over the Start Switch or	ne by one.					
(Switch to the next key after the registered key count changes)						
Registered key count is 1.						
Finish						

ABRITES Diagnostics 34.5 www.abrites.com	-	×
Home Subaru Immobilizer	AMS valid until 09 Feb 2025	 ٢
Hold each key to	be registered over the Start Switch one by one.	
(Switch to the r	next key after the registered key count changes)	
	Registered key count is 2.	
	Finish	

#### 6.4 All Keys Lost - Smart System Reset

If you are in an All Keys Lost situation, you can perform the "Smart System Reset" special function under the Smart Access System Menu. Resetting the Smart System will prepare the vehicle with key learning. After the procedure is complete you need to proceed to the "Key Registration" procedure, described in the dedicated section. 6.3 of this manual. After the key is programmed you will be asked to turn ignition ON with each key, and after that a ECM registration procedure should start automatically. With this, the All keys lost situation should be solved and the car will have a working key.

ABRITES Diagnostics 34.5 www.abrites.com	-		×
bask Home Subaru Immobilizer	AMS valid until 09 Feb 202	5 a <b>000</b>	٩
Smart System Reset finished successfully.			
ОК			



#### 6.5 Engine ECM registration

This procedure happens automatically after key registration for some vehicles, in other cases you will need to perform it manually after key registration for vehicles with mechanical key. It is required in order to synchronize the information of the new key with the ECM.

#### 6.6 Meter SCU registration

(Coming soon)

#### 6.7 Remote engine starter registration

(Coming soon)

### 7. Service Functionalities

The Abrites diagnostics for Subaru supports useful service functions for workshops specializing in Subaru vehicles, such as DPF regeneration, injector coding, etc. The Abrites diagnostics for Subaru is available to perform at an OEM level with significantly better speeds.

#### 7.1 DPF regeneration

Many diesel vehicles produced by Subaru had no access to what is referred to as Forced regeneration after a DPF cleaning. Now this is done by OBDII with a simple click. The process takes between 10 and 20 minutes, depending on the temperature of the DPF and the amount of soot residue.

#### 7.2 Injector codes

Reading and registering Injector codes is very important when the user is faced with the needs to replace the Subaru diesel injectors. This is done by entering the Engine control unit's menu

Once that is done the user should select "INJECTORS" and read the injector codes. Then they should be saved. The injectors should be registered and the vehicle will start.